
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

25 January 2023 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 2nd February, 2023 at 6.30 pm 
in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Anton Dani 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown, 

Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner, Yvonne Stevens, Peter Watson and 
Judy Welbourn 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART I – PRELIMINARIES 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 30th January.  
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 

1   First Draft SELCP Asset Management Strategy 2023-2028 (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

 (A report by Andy Fisher, Assistant Director – Assets)  
 

2   Partnership Policy Alignment (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

 (A report by Corey Gooch, Business Intelligence and Change Manager)  
 

3   National Portfolio Organisation (Pages 25 - 40) 
 

 (A report by Lydia Rusling, Assistant Director – Economic Growth)  
 
 

4   Budget  Overview 2023/24 and Draft Budget (Pages 41 - 76) 
 

 (A report by Steven Houchin, Chief Finance Officer – PSPS)  
 

5   Christmas Lights  
 

 (A verbal discussion lead by the Chairman)  
 

6   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 77 - 78) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Pippa Rose, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  email: 
pippa.rose@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314227  email: pippa.rose@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

1 December 2022 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor Anton Dani (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, David Brown, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner, 
Yvonne Stevens, Peter Watson and Judy Welbourn 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets, Assistant Director - Regulation, Safer Communities Service 
Manager, Environmental Health Manager, Service Manager – Affordable and Accessible 
Homes, Deputy Chief Executive - Communities., Assistant Director - Wellbeing and 
Community Leadership and Revenues and Benefits Operations Manager 
 
30   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the last meeting were agreed by the Committee and signed by the 
Chairman 
 
31   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies of absence were received from Councillors; Alison Austin, Alan Bell and Paul 
Goodale. 
 
32   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillor Yvonne Stevens declared that she knew the owners of the Called-In item, as 
such she would be leaving the meeting before that item.  
Councillor Judith Welbourn declared that she has family living in the Ingelow Avenue 
area but confirmed this would not mean she was pre-determined. 
 
33   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
34   DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF AND LOCAL DISCOUNTS POLICIES 

 
Following a request from the Chairman a report was brought to the Committee which 
provided details of Business Rates reliefs and an overview of the various types of reliefs 
currently available.  
 
Legislation provided for a number of rate reliefs covering different situations and 
circumstances. Some were discretionary reliefs, others were mandatory.  All rate relief 
awarded was administered and awarded in line with the legislation and/or Boston’s own 
local policy, ensuring a fair, equitable and consistent process to supporting eligible 
businesses and organisations across the borough.  
 
The Chairman invited a member of the public, Mr Chris Mountain, owner of Boston 
Soap, to address the Committee. During his speech Mr Mountain explained that he 
believed the high business rates were causing many shop fronts in the town centre to be 
vacant, and that new businesses would not be able to afford the current rates.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
1 December 2022 
 

Following questions from Members the Deputy Head of Revenue and Benefits 
confirmed that the rateable value of shops are determined by the Valuation Office and 
not the Council.  
 
The Leader of the Council expressed his willingness to write a letter to the Secretary of 
State regarding Boston’s Town Centre.  
 
RESOLVED:  
That the Committee implore the Leader of the Council to write a letter to the 
Secretary of State outlining the concerns for Boston’s town centre.    
 
35   CORPORATE ENFORCEMENT POLICY 

 
The Environmental Health Manager presented a report which set out the Council’s 
approach to how it would carry out its regulatory enforcement activities, of individuals, 
groups and businesses. The policy had been developed in collaboration with the South 
and East Lincolnshire Partnership, in order to ensure that the way in which the Councils 
regulate businesses and individuals was both lawful and consistent across the 
partnership.  
 
It also demonstrated how undertaking regulatory activity in accordance with the 
provisions of the policy would ensure that the Council meets its responsibility to regulate 
and enforce fairly, openly, consistently and proportionately.  
 
The Council was responsible for enforcing a wide range of legislation, with powers of 
enforcement usually delegated to individual officers in the various service areas 
concerned. The decision to take (or not to take) enforcement action is a serious one that 
may have implications for all involved. It was therefore important that there was a policy 
in place that ensures fairness, openness, proportionality and consistency.  
 
Members were in support of the policy being developed in collaboration with the 
partnering Councils.  
 
In response to a question raised from the Mayor, the Environmental Health Manager 
confirmed that, while there is not a service standard for keeping both offenders and 
witnesses informed in the progress being made, the department always updates all 
parties involved.   
 
RESOLVED:  
That the Committee support the report on to Cabinet with the following 
recommendations; 

1. To add Ward Members into the consultation list under ‘6.2 – How Decisions 
are Made on Enforcement Action’.  

To add that Members will be kept up to date with any revisions that are made 
under the delegated authority for information purposes only into 
Recommendation 2. 
 
36   MEES PROJECT 

 
The Safer Communities Service Manager presented a report to the Committee which 
brought forward two updates to the Private Housing Policy Framework to introduce 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
1 December 2022 

 

Locally Adopted Charges for the enforcement of Minimum Energy Enforcement 
Standards (MEES) and Electrical Safety Standards. Both pieces of legislation had been 
in force for some time and would enable the Housing Standards Team to take 
appropriate action where landlords are non-compliant. The report set out updates 
required to the Council’s existing Private Sector Housing Policy Framework to enable 
the Council to take action where it has reasonable grounds to believe that a landlord has 
failed to fulfil their duties under these regulations.  
 
A funded award from the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
(BEIS) had been secured to undertake a project specifically focussing on enforcement of 
the MEES regulations and these charges need to be in places in order for engagement 
and Compliance Notices fail, the Council has the power to proceed the issue to Civil 
Penalties.  
 
The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) Regulations 2015 
introduced a minimum level of efficiency which private-rented properties must meet, 
known as the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES).  
 
The Electrical Safety Standards in the Private Rented Sector (England) Regulations 
2020 require Landlords to have property electrics checked at least every five years by a 
suitably qualified person. The electrics must meet standards and Landlords must give 
their tenants proof of this.  
 
The Committee raised concerns regarding the 30 day timeframe Landlords had to make 
necessary changes to their rental property. In response the Safer Communities Service 
Manager assured the Committee that if the delay had been caused by external factors 
(supplies being unavailable ect) the 30 days could be waivered in some circumstances.   
 
Following questions from the Mayor, the Safer Communities Service Manager confirmed 
that he was unaware of the day-to-day spending of the funding as that did not sit within 
his department.  
 
RESOLVED:  
That the Committee support and endorse the report through to Cabinet. 
 
37   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
It was agreed by the Committee that, under section 100(A)(iv) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item if 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Order. 
 
38   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Assistant Director – General Fund Assets and Lead Officer added SELCP Asset 
Management Strategy for the 2 February 2023 meeting. 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 10.37 pm 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Corporate and Community Committee 

DATE: 2 February 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

First Draft SELCP Asset Management Strategy 2023 - 2028. 

 

To seek the Committee’s input into the first draft SELCP 

Asset Management Strategy. 

KEY DECISION: No 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Jonathan Noble - Portfolio Holder, Finance and 

Commercial 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Assistant Director - General Fund Assets  

Assistant Director - General Fund Assets  

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

 

SUMMARY 

As sovereign Councils and as a Partnership, we recognise that effective use of our land 

and property assets form one of the essential ingredients for high quality service delivery 

and creating and ensuring value for our residents. Our aim is to manage a well-planned 

and well maintained property portfolio, ensuring that we can demonstrate value for 

money and, more importantly, that by using our assets well, secure wide value for our 

community.  

Appendix 1 presents the first draft SELCP Asset Management Strategy.  Although taking 

account of previous plans, the draft has been purposefully crafted to be high level in that 

it seeks to set the guiding principles for Asset Management across the SELCP and only 

seeks to set a focussed number of high level actions in order to shape and drive the 

detailed work necessary within each Council to manage and maintain its assets. 

Whilst it is intended to supersede each Council’s highest level Asset Management Plan, 

it does not immediately supersede the various process and policy documents that sit 

below those plans that exist across the SELCP as those documents may or indeed may 

not need amendment following a ‘detailed review of the detail’. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



RECOMMENDATIONS 

That: 

1   The Committee consider the draft at Appendix 1, critiquing and commenting on: 

• its form and purpose;  

• the ‘guiding principles’ suggested at section 1.4; 

• the suggested ‘strategic approach’ to asset management at section 2.6; 

• the five draft ‘strategic priorities’ set out and the delivery dates proposed, and, 

 

2 Recommends to Cabinet that it considers the final version and formally adopts the 

Strategy.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

In following the recommendations, the Committee has the opportunity to really shape 

how the draft SELCP Asset Management Strategy develops and have its thoughts 

incorporated into the iteration that will be submitted to each Executive for adoption is 

due course. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

NA 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Having set out within the SELCP Workplan that a new Asset Strategy is required for 

the three sovereign Councils, the first draft of such a high level strategy is now being 

presented to this committee, having been tabled at South Holland’s Policy 

Development Panel on 13 December 2022 and East Lindsey’s Overview Committee 

on 24 January 2023. Set out at Appendix 1; the Committee has a real opportunity to 

shape Boston’s needs and to input into a Strategy that, hopefully, can be adopted by 

each Sovereign Council. 

 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1   Each SELCP Council is responsible for delivering a wide range of public services 

with each playing a key role in community leadership and setting out their priorities 

within their respective Corporate Plans. 

2.2  In order to deliver services effectively and contribute towards each Council’s 

Corporate Strategy, partner Councils need a clear framework for understanding the 

‘value’ and condition of their land and property, ensuring that each secures the 

maximum value from their respective general fund asset portfolios.  

2.3  Although the size and diversity of each Council’s portfolio varies significantly, each 

Council faces pressures on its finances and needs to continually take a robust but 

realistic view about what they keep, what they dispose of, what they use and what 
Page 6



they acquire; assets need to be considered strategically, considered in light of each 

Council’s priorities, and considered in light of each Council’s resources. 

2.4  Appendix 1 presents the first draft of an Asset Management Plan that each Council’s 

scrutiny/policy development body is being asked to consider and develop in 

preparation for a final draft being presented to each Council’s Executive for 

adoption. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 Commenting and critiquing the draft will add real value to the Strategy’s 

development and will ensure that the needs of Boston Borough Council are fully 

met. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The draft Strategy, if adopted by each Council, will provide a common approach to Asset 
Management across the SELCP where it benefits each sovereign partner. 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

The draft Strategy, if adopted by each Council, will provide a common approach to Asset 

Management across the SELCP where it benefits each sovereign partner. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

Environmental Awareness and Accountability. 

Future Prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth. 

STAFFING 

All work in preparing this strategy will be contained within existing staffing resources; 

however, the Strategy, if adopted, will support the drive to create a single SELCP staffing 

model. 

 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None is considering the draft as per the recommendations. 

 

DATA PROTECTION 

NA. 

 

FINANCIAL 

None at this juncture in terms of considering the draft as per the recommendations. Page 7



 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

None at this juncture in terms of considering the draft as per the recommendations. 

 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

The draft has been agreed with ELDC’s Finance Portfolio Holder, has been to South 

Holland’s Policy Development Panel and is due to go to Boston’s Corporate and 

Community Committee on 2 February 2023.   

 

REPUTATION 

None at this juncture in terms of considering the draft as per the recommendations. 

 

CONTRACTS 

None at this juncture in terms of considering the draft as per the recommendations. 

 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None. 

 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

NA  

 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None at this juncture in terms of considering the draft as per the recommendations. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None at this juncture in terms of considering the draft as per the recommendations. 

 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

(Use this section to highlight any links to the 12 missions contained in the Levelling Up 

White Paper set out below.  Delete any which are not applicable.  If none, insert the word 

‘none’.) 

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s 

Levelling Up White paper. 

Living 
Standards 

 NA. 

Page 8



Research and 
Development 

 NA. 

Transport 
Infrastructure 

NA. 

Digital 
Connectivity 

NA. 

Education NA. 

Skills NA. 

Health NA. 

Wellbeing NA. 

Pride in Place NA. 

Housing NA. 

Crime NA. 

Local 
Leadership 

NA. 

 

6. ACRONYMS 

 

• ELDC – East Lindsey District Council 

• SELCP – South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Draft South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Asset 

Management Strategy.  2023 – 2028. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

This report has not been considered by another Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Assistant Director - General Fund Assets 

Andy.fisher@boston.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Assistant Director - General Fund Assets 

Andy.fisher@boston.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder, 

Finance and Commercial. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

1 

 

Appendix 1 

 

South and East 
Lincolnshire 

Councils 
Partnership - 

Asset 
Management 

Strategy. 
 

 2023 – 2028. 

 
 
 

Page 11



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 
 
 
Overview ............................................................................................................... 1 

1 Introduction..................................................................................................... 2 

2 SELCP Councils ............................................................................................. 3 

3 Understanding our Property Assets ................................................................ 5 

4 Maintenance of our Property Assets .............................................................. 6 

6 Efficiency in Asset Management and Value for Money .................................. 6 

7 Compliance .................................................................................................... 7 

8 Asset Disposal and Acquisition ...................................................................... 7 

9 Monitoring and Review. .................................................................................. 8 

 

 

Page 12



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 1 

 
 

Strategic asset management can be defined as the activity of aligning 
property assets with the strategic aims and direction of the organisation 

and adding both financial and non-financial value to the organisation as a 
result. 

 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; 2021 

 
 
Overview 
 
As sovereign Councils and as a Partnership, we recognise that effective use of 
our land and property assets form one of the essential ingredients for high quality 
service delivery and creating and ensuring value for our residents. Our aim is to 
manage a well-planned and well maintained property portfolio, ensuring that we 
can demonstrate value for money and, more importantly, that by using our assets 
well, secure wide value for our community.  
 
Although taking account of previous plans, this Asset Strategy is purposefully 
drafted to be high level in that it sets the guiding principles of Asset Management 
for SELCP and only sets a focussed number of high level actions in order to 
shape and drive the detailed work necessary to manage and maintain our assets.   
 
Whilst it supersedes each Council’s highest level Asset Management Plan, it 
does not immediately supersede the various process and policy documents that 
sit below those Plans that exist across the SELCP as those documents may or 
indeed may not need amendment following a ‘detailed review of the detail’; for 
example, South Holland District Council’s 2020 Industrial Unit Lettings Policy 
remains fit for purpose and does not become defunct as a result of this Strategy.   
 
The following sections set out guiding principles of the Strategy and the strategic 
approach that SELCP Councils will take in relation to its general fund assets 
throughout the life of this Strategy. 
 

Page 13



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 2 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1  This Strategy replaces the highest level General Fund Asset Management 

Plan or Strategy at each Council across the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership (SELCP) and is adopted at sovereign Council level.  
The purpose of the Strategy is to provide the strategic framework within 
which each council will manage its general fund land and property assets.    

 
1.2  The strategy will have a five year scope, with the five strategic priorities set 

out driving the monitoring, review and updating of the Strategy to ensure it 
remains relevant and fit for purpose throughout, and covers all of each 
Council’s operational and non-operational general fund assets.  Partnership 
councils each have a diverse asset base, including but not being limited to: 

 

• Land and buildings that are used, in part or whole, to deliver services 
directly to the public; for example, the Municipal Buildings in Boston, 
Priory Road offices in Spalding and the many car parks, play parks and 
open spaces that each Council owns and manages within their 
respective areas. 

• Assets that support service delivery; for example, South Holland’s West 
Marsh Road operations depot, Boston’s St John’s operations depot and 
East Lindsey’s operations depots in Louth and Skegness. 

• Income generating assets; for example industrial units, commercial units 
and office accommodation, together with other land and property 
concessions offered and let to the market at commercial rates. 

• A range of Community Assets, for example country parks, public open 
spaces and other recreational areas. 

 
1.3  More traditional views about asset management are no longer appropriate; 

today we have new and different challenges and our operating model 
continues to need to change and evolve; there are many drivers for change, 
including but not being limited to: 

 

• Sustainability and climate change – is a key focus of the SELCP with 
decarbonising property assets requiring action to be taken in the short 
term in the context of long-term perspectives.  

• Technology and data – are critical facets of strategic asset 
management that should be a focus of alignment for SELCP.  

• Constrained resources – is a constant factor in local government. 

• Operating models – need to be adaptive and agile, just as we have 
demonstrated with the formation of SELCP.  

• Collaboration – our collaboration with partners continues to grow and 
provides opportunity not only to do things differently, but to do different 
things that add greater value to partner Councils and our communities. 

Page 14



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 3 

• Service transformation – collaboration on asset management can be a 
trigger for the streamlining of service delivery; the Horncastle HUB is a 
good example of how East Lindsey District Council has transformed its 
entire operating model.  

• Place-making – as sovereign Councils and as a Partnership, we have 
priorities that focus on meeting the needs of our communities and about 
the nature and pace of growth; strategic asset management can actively 
support both; for example, the acquisition and disposal of assets that 
drive, facilitate or support growth.  

• Adaptability – COVID-19 has shown that public service delivery is not 
solely contingent on the asset platforms and operational arrangements 
that had previously been in place and has highlighted the importance of 
adaptability across the entire spectrum of asset management, from 
setting a strategy, such as the SELCP Workforce Strategy, to redefining 
spaces in workplaces. 

 
1.4  Based on the drive for change, the guiding principles of this strategy are set 

out below. 
 

 

The guiding principles of this strategy are to: 
 

• Promote the efficient, effective and sustainable use of land and buildings and 
protect and optimise the value of all general fund Council assets to each 
Council and the communities they serve 

• Generate efficiency gains, capital receipts and most importantly, maximise 
revenue income in order to ‘self-fund’ repairs and maintenance as far as 
possible and use any surpluses to support other council services 

• Ensure that our assets are appropriately maintained and that all statutory 
land and property requirements are always met or exceeded 

• Pursue innovative accommodation solutions that meet each council’s current 
and future needs 

• Reduce carbon emissions and improve environmental sustainability wherever 
a and whenever it is reasonably practicable to do so 

 

 
 
 

2 SELCP Councils 
 
2.1  Each SELCP Council is responsible for delivering a wide range of public 

services and each play a key role in community leadership with the priorities 
of each being set out within their respective Corporate Plans. 

 

Page 15



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 4 

2.2  In order to deliver services effectively and contribute towards each Council’s 
Corporate Strategy, partner Councils need a clear framework for 
understanding the value and condition of their land and property assets and 
that each Council ensures that each secures the maximum value from their 
respective general fund asset portfolios.  

 
2.3  Although the size and diversity of each Council’s portfolio varies 

significantly, each Council faces pressures on its finances and needs to 
continually take a robust but realistic view about what they keep, what they 
dispose of, what they use and what they acquire; assets need to be 
considered strategically, considered in light of each Council’s priorities, 
and considered in light of each Council’s resources. 

 
2.4  As at 31 March 2022, the audited value of each Council’s general fund 

asset base was: 
 

• Boston Borough Council:  £39,352,654 

• East Lindsey District Council:  £96,241,694 

• South Holland District Council:  £23,910,300 
 
2.5  In addition, the collective annual income from all income generating assets 

across the SELCP is approximately £10,000,000; that income is vital to 
each partner Council and subsidises other services; managing and 
maintaining those income generating assets is clearly critical to the financial 
security of each Council so proportionate investment into our general fund 
assets is essential to maintain or enhance the income each portfolio 
generates.  Whether operational assets such as car parks, or investment 
assets such as industrial units, ongoing strategic investment will be 
required. 

 
2.6  The value assets have to service delivery, the value they have to the 

financial position of each Council and more importantly, the value they 
provide, generate and derive for communities should therefore be the 
drivers behind all asset based decisions; in light of this, it is absolutely 
appropriate for SELCP Councils to develop the Royal Institution of 
Chartered Surveryors 2021 advice and to adopt the following strategic 
approach to its general fund assets. 

 
 

Across the SELCP: 
 

• assets should only be retained that are of strategic importance or where 
there is a demonstrable need to support service delivery and they are fit 
for purpose  

Page 16



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 5 

• assets may be retained or acquired to generate revenue or where they 
support the delivery of other objectives, e.g. growth, skills and 
environmental enhancement or protection 

• assets may be used, disposed of or acquired to support collaboration with 
public sector partners and other stakeholders 

• assets will be managed in full compliance with all relevant legislation; 
where energy performance significantly affects asset viability, disposal or 
alternative use will be considered alongside investment 

• assets will be made as energy efficient as resources and innovation allow 
as SELCP is committed to its wider plans for adapting to climate change 

• space will be optimised in support of service delivery through the 
continual refinement of flexible working practices 

• the acquisition, disposal or transfer of assets may take place to deliver 
social value to the community where appropriate 

 

 
3 Understanding our Property Assets 
 
3.1  Without knowledge of a system, you can’t act upon that system; that is true 

of a property portfolio.  The knowledge needed to act on a system is diverse 
and requires representative input; as a result and in line with good practice, 
the first priority of this Strategy may sound operational, but is in fact highly 
strategic: 

 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 1: 
 
By the end of Q1 of 2023/24, to have a set up a Strategic Asset Group at each 
partner Council; the standing group shall consist of the Portfolio Holder, the 
Asset Manager, a Finance representative and an Assistant Director to be a 
critical friend. 

 
  3.2  Based on the strategic approach to general fund asset management set out 

at section 2.6, the second priority of this strategy is: 
 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 2: 
 
By the end of Q3 2023/24, to have undertaken a strategic assessment of each 
general fund asset held by each Partner Council in order to produce a single 
Partnership based classification of which assets should be retained and which 
should be considered for disposal or other.  That classification will be developed 
for each Council’s portfolio on the same basis, agreed by each Executive and 
will then drive individual business cases that propose the disposal, repurposing 
or community transfer of each asset that is not to be retained throughout the life 
of this Strategy.  

 

Page 17



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 6 

 

4 Maintenance of our Property Assets 
 
4.1  This Strategy seeks to align the approach to asset maintenance across the 

Partnership; asset maintenance should be condition and data led and each 
Council should target their resources (outside of meeting all legal 
requirements) where those resources will have the greatest value; that does 
not simply mean that resources are focused towards general fund assets on 
grounds of safety, urgency and risk but to do so strategically!   

 
4.2  To do so strategically requires two principle things; 1 – a platform to record, 

measure and monitor that condition against, and 2 - a comprehensive 
understanding of asset condition.  Given the difference across the 
Partnership in terms of both, the third strategic priority of this Strategy is: 

 
 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 3: 
 
By the end of Q4 2023/24 to have a single property management system 
common to each SELCP Council where all property information is held 
seamlessly and accessible to all Partner colleagues. 

 
 
4.3  Condition and data led investment into each Council’s general fund assets 

will continue to be critical going forward with a key annual exercise being 
the preparation of planned maintenance programmes.  As part of ‘business 
as usual’, each Council will update its planned maintenance programme 
annually and use the annual budget setting process to present any case for 
additional resources as appropriate for both capital and revenue, having first 
followed the necessary steps for any capital ask.   

 

6 Efficiency in Asset Management and Value for 
Money 

 
6.1  SELCP Councils have a diverse range assets that in revenue terms across 

the three Councils account for approximately £1,500,000 spend per annum 
and capital expenditure that can run into £millions in a busy year.  Whilst the 
procurement of all goods and services is always compliant with each 
Council’s constitutional requirements, there is significant scope for partner 
Council’s to review their staffing models, contracting and procurement 
arrangements and their constitutional arrangements for property as an 
executive function. As a consequence, the following strategic priorities have 
been set: 

 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 4: 

Page 18



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 7 

 
By the end of Q3 2023/24, to have a single Asset Team structure in place across 
the SELCP that increases resilience and ensures that all necessary and 
appropriate skills are available to the three partner Councils.  

 
 
 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 5: 
 
By the end of Q4 2024/25, to have procured one or more responsive 
maintenance contractors across the SELCP to ensure consistency in cost, 
quality and service. 

 

7 Compliance 
 
7.1  Arguably it is not necessary to set out in a Strategy that you will comply with 

‘all prevailing legal requirements’, but as public sector organisations it is not 
possible to overstate each Councils commitment towards compliance; each 
Council will therefore seek to ensure full, lawful Health and Safety 
compliance in relation but not limited to: Asbestos compliance, Legionella 
compliance, Fire Safety compliance, Gas Safety compliance, Accessibility 
compliance, Electrical Safety compliance and Energy Performance 
compliance. 

 
 

8 Asset Disposal and Acquisition 
 
8.1  The decision to dispose of any land asset, whether by way of a long lease 

or freehold disposals; or to acquire any land asset, shall only be effected in 
accordance with each Council’s constitution.  Assets can be declared 
surplus and/or disposed of for a number of reasons, congruent with the 
principles set out at section 2.6, including but not being limited to when: 

 

• they make no contribution to the delivery of services 

• their retention is not economically viable 

• they afford no strategic or value opportunity, or when; 

• an alternative has been identified which would be more cost effective. 
 

Equally, assets can be acquired, where, for example,  
 

• they contribute towards service delivery 

• they support growth or any strategic, community, environmental or social 
value outcome 

• they can generate income, or, 

• where they release an asset for disposal  

Page 19



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Asset Management Strategy.  
2023 – 2028. 

 

DRAFT 8 

 
8.2  When making a decision about an asset disposal or acquisition which falls 

outside of the adopted Scheme of Delegation to Members or Officers, the 
respective Council’s Executive will receive an appropriate report, make any 
decision necessary and fit, referring the matter to Full Council where required. 

 

9 Monitoring and Review. 
 
9.1  This Strategy will be monitored annually by way of report to the respective 

body within each partner Council.  Each review will assess relevant 
progress against the Strategy’s Strategic Priorities and will inform whether 
and how the Strategy is updated to ensure it remains live and relevant 
throughout. 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Corporate and Community Committee 

DATE: 3 February 2023 

SUBJECT: Partnership Policy Alignment  

KEY DECISION: 

  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

No 

 

Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader of the Council 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Corey Gooch, Business Intelligence and Change Manager 

All 

EXEMPT REPORT No 

 

SUMMARY 

Following the Partnership scrutiny recommendation regarding the alignment of key policies, this 

update aims to provide a list of those policies identified for review and alignment in 23/24 as 

part of the emerging Annual Delivery Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the contents of this report be noted. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To deliver on the Partnership scrutiny recommendation. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 

 

1. BACKGROUND 
Page 21

Agenda Item 2



 

1.1 The following recommendation was agreed as part of the Partnership’s Annual Scrutiny: 

With regard to the alignment of key policies, a list of those identified on the policy register 

to be part of the Annual Delivery Plans going forward, to be taken to each Council’s 

relevant committee for review. 

 

1.2 This report provides an overview of the policies intended for alignment in 23/24. 

 

2. REPORT 

              

 Policy Name 
Scheduled Review 
Date (23/24) 

 

Partnership Playing Fields Strategy Q4  

SELCP Customer Experience Strategy Q4  

DFG mandatory and discretionary policies 
Q4  

Graffiti & Street Art Policy 
Q3  

Review of Markets Policies  
Q4  

Seek approval for a Partnership Street Naming and Numbering Policy 
Q2  

Environment Policy 
Q2  

Councils Corporate Strategy 
Q3  

Implementation of an aligned Communications Strategy across 
Partnership Councils 

Q2  

Conclude alignment of HR policies (one batch requires consideration by 
SHDC Council to complete the review) 

TBC  

Update and consider alignment of Discretionary Rate Relief Policies  
Q3  

Planning Enforcement Policy Review 
Q4  

South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy Q3  

Climate Change Strategy Q3  

Private Sector Housing Policy Q4  

Homelessness Strategy Q4  

 

Page 22



 
3.         REPORT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

 

To provide an overview of key policies that will be brought forward for alignment across 

the Partnership in 23/24. 

3.2 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

Policies being developed/refreshed will seek to address key corporate priorities. 

3.3 STAFFING 

 None 

3.4 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 None 

3.5 DATA PROTECTION 

None 

3.6 FINANCIAL 

None 
 
3.7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 None 

3.8 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

 None 

3.9 REPUTATION 

 None 

3.10 CONTRACTS 

 None 

3.11 CRIME AND DISORDER 

 None 

3.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

 None 

3.13 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

 None 

3.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

 None 

 
Page 23



 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Corey Gooch – Business Intelligence and Change 

Manager 

Signed off by: James Gilbert - Assistant Director - Corporate 

 

 

Page 24



1 
 

 

 

REPORT TO: Boston Corporate and Community Committee 

DATE: 2nd February 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

National Portfolio Organisation 

 

Consider the recommendations to Cabinet for the funding 
associated with National Portfolio Organisation. 

KEY DECISION: YES 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Richard Austin 

REPORT AUTHOR: Lydia Rusling, Assistant Director for Economic Growth 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report provides an overview of the National Portfolio Organisation (NPO) funding from 
Arts Council England (ACE) and the proposed recommendations for Boston Cabinet.  

Arts Council England (ACE) has confirmed investment for the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership (SELCP) from the 2023-2026 Investment Programme for National 
Portfolio Organisation. Funding per annum of £651,993 (total of £1,955,799) will commence 
from April 2023 to March 2026. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee is asked to consider and make comments on the draft report and proposed 
recommendations, which will be fed back to Cabinet. The proposed recommendations for 
Cabinet in respect of the National Portfolio Organisation funding, include: 

• Agree to East Lindsey District Council as the Accountable Body for the Funding. 

• Support the Activity Plan, the in-kind commitment, including Boston Guildhall as a 
Cultural Hub, and propose representation for the Culture Board. 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To meet Arts Council England requirements to access annual funding allocations through the 
National Portfolio Organisation funding. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The application to Arts Council England was a competitive process and the funding award is 
based on the commitment to deliver the Activity Plan. Funding would not be awarded, or could 
be withdrawn if the Council did not support the proposals. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 Arts Council England (ACE) has confirmed investment for the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership (SELCP) area from the 2023-2026 Investment Programme for National 
Portfolio Organisation. Funding per annum of £651,993 (total of £1,955,799) will commence 
from April 2023 and continue to March 2026. 

1.2 The funding will be awarded to East Lindsey District Council as the accountable body for activity 
across the SELCP area.  

1.3 In 2021, East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council received ACE funding to 
develop a Cultural Strategy. Both Councils have agreed a Cultural Framework with two place 
based action plans, along with a commitment to extending to reflect the new geography of the 
Partnership and incorporating South Holland District Council. The principles of the strategy – 
Cultural Framework for Renewal – were reflected in the application for NPO status. 

1.4 Following notification of NPO Investment in November, documents providing details of the 
activity plan and financial profile for the period April 2023 – March 2024 were submitted to 
Arts Council England (ACE) for approval prior to the funding award in April 2023. 

 

2. REPORT 
 

2.1 National Portfolio Organisations play a central role in helping ACE deliver their strategy, Let’s 
Create. The ‘Let’s Create’ Strategy has three Outcomes: Creative People, Cultural Communities 
and A Creative and Cultural Country. Their Investment Principles are Ambition and Quality, 
Dynamism, Environmental Responsibility, and Inclusivity and Relevance. 

2.2 The SELCP Application included an Activity Plan and Investment Principles, the expected basis 
for monitoring and evaluation.  

2.3 The Application proposed an artistic and cultural programme to bring to life the rich tapestry of 
events and episodes from history, to resonate through the development and growth of our 
towns, connecting to our communities and building pride in our place and engaging new 
visitors.  

2.4 In Boston the programme of activity will complement the capital investment through Town 
Deal and Levelling Up initiatives to build pride in place and strengthen the visitor offer. 

Page 26



3 
 

2.5 Feedback from ACE (attached letter, Appendix A) identified areas of work expected to be 
preserved within the updated Activity Plan, including:  

• Programmes of work with schools and young people;  

• Digitisation of collections;  

• Working across heritage and museum sites to enable stronger cultural programming 
including a focus on heritage within arts;  

• Engagement with the new Cultural Strategy;  

• Embedding approaches to supporting the involvement of children and young people.  

2.6 As per the application, they expect the development of three Creative Hubs to help deliver the 
activity and the establishment of a Culture Board to oversee the programme. East Lindsey 
District Council will be the lead authority and accountable body for the Partnership’s NPO 
investment, with a focus on three hubs – Boston Guildhall (Boston Borough Council), 
Asycoughfee Hall (South Holland District Council and the Colonnade at Sutton on Sea (East 
Lindsey District Council). 

2.7 Working collaboratively across the Communities and Growth Directorates, officers will ensure 
connectivity between the Culture Board and the Partnership’s Healthy Living Board. Quarterly 
Healthy Living Board meetings will consider updates on NPO activity and the development of 
the Culture Board. 

2.8 An updated Activity Plan has informed the resourcing requirements and the development of 
Cultural Hubs in consultation with relevant officers with responsibility for Asycoughfee Hall, 
Boston Guildhall and the Colonnade at Sutton on Sea. The NPO for the SELCP will be led by the 
Growth Directorate whilst working collaboratively with the Communities Directorate to ensure 
the Council asset – Boston Guildhall – provides a cultural hub of activity and consideration of 
the recommendations from the recent Guildhall review. Artistic and cultural activity, building 
the stories of the town’s heritage, engagement with schools, colleges, community and art and 
cultural organisations will centre on the Guildhall – bringing it to life as a cultural hub and 
building partnerships with the town’s heritage assets.  

2.9 We reference commissioning other ACE funded organisations and care will be taken to ensure 
there is no duplication of ACE funding. We are proposing effective management arrangements 
with Magna Vitae, East Lindsey District Council’s Cultural and Leisure Partner. Magna Vitae has 
a well-established NPO and an excellent reputation with ACE. Their support, guidance and 
collegiate working will enable the effective mobilisation of the Culture Board, delivery of the 
activity plan, whilst adding value for resourcing and commissioning. Working in partnership 
with Magna Vitae we will actively engage with all NPOs across Lincolnshire: 

Name  23/24 funding 

Blackfriars Arts Centre Ltd 
(Boston) 

NPO  £                                 130,000  

Box Clever Theatre Company 
(Touring) 

NPO  £                                    80,000  

East Lindsey District Council NPO  £                                 651,933  

Lincolnshire County Council NPO  £                                 205,910  

Magna Vitae NPO  £                                 320,796  

North Kesteven District Council NPO  £                                 204,861  

The University of Lincoln NPO  £                                 250,000  

Zest Theatre, Lincoln NPO  £                                 180,000  

 

Page 27



4 
 

3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 Being a National Portfolio Organisation is vital to the success and development of the 
cultural sector. Organisations are required to put the public at the heart of their work and 
be committed to working collaboratively with each other and with other individuals and 
organisations within communities. 

3.2 The NPO status and associated funding will support the Council’s Cultural objectives as set 
out in the adopted Cultural Framework for Renewal. 

3.3 Boston will be central to the development of a successful NPO with its rich heritage, the 
opportunity to celebrate Boston 400 and the Guildhall as a cultural hub. By working in 
partnership the funding will support pride of place and strengthen the visitor offer.  

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The ambition of the Cultural Framework and associated NPO funding supports a wider cultural and 
place based approach to regeneration, in line with the Government’s Levelling Up White Paper and 
links culture with community engagement to support our Partnership objectives. 

IMPLICATIONS SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

The Cultural Framework set out a number of specific commitments: 

• A commitment to increasing audience participation levels across all types of cultural activity 
– from the very low levels of participation which have promoted Arts Council England to 
position Boston and East Lindsey as priority places for investment in cultural development. 

• A commitment to excellence and innovation in cultural infrastructure, partnership and 
programming. 

• Commitment to the four investment principles set out by Arts Council England – Ambition 
and Quality; Dynamism; Environmental Responsibility; Inclusivity and Relevance. 

• The establishment of a Cultural Compact to enable the delivery of a programme of activities 
as a new National Portfolio Organisation. 

• Commitment to the Priority Actions identified in the Cultural Framework for Boston. 

These commitments are reflected in the NPO application and associated funding.  

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The Activity Plan and associated funded programme reflects the Cultural Framework, which support 
the priorities identified in the Corporate Strategy 2020-2024. 

STAFFING 

An updated Activity Plan has informed the resourcing requirements and the development of 
Cultural Hub in consultation with relevant officers with responsibility for Boston Guildhall. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None arising from the report. 

DATA PROTECTION 

None arising from the report. 

FINANCIAL 

Page 28



5 
 

Commitment of in-kind support to enable Boston Guildhall to develop as a cultural hub. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

None arising from the report. 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

External consultation was undertaken as part of the formation of the Cultural Framework. 

REPUTATION 

None arising from the report. 

CONTRACTS 

None arising from the report. 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None arising from the report. 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

None arising from the report. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The Cultural Framework referenced The Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Lincolnshire (2018). In 
many of the areas it prioritises, arts and culture are already making a difference, with the potential 
to do much more in the future.  

We are committed to aligning the Framework and the Action Plans with the recently established 
Healthy Living Board, which is tasked with delivering a leisure and culture offer for the sub-region.  
Quarterly Healthy Living Board meetings will consider updates on NPO activity and the 
development of the Culture Board. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Cultural Framework aligns with Arts Council’s four investment principles, which incorporates 
Environmental Responsibility. 

The Framework references connecting culture to the natural environment through projects and 
infrastructure, and positioning this Framework as a vital tool for sustainable and responsible 
cultural development. 

We are committed to aligning the Framework with the Partnership’s Climate Change Strategy and 
the newly established Climate Action Network. 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Skills By 2030, the number of people successfully completing high-quality skills 
training will have significantly increased in every area of the UK. In 
England, this will lead to 200,000 more people successfully completing 

Page 29



6 
 

high-quality skills training annually, driven by 80,000 more people 
completing courses in the lowest skilled areas. 

Health By 2030, the gap in Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) between local areas 
where it is highest and lowest will have narrowed, and by 2035 HLE will 
rise by 5 years. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

Pride in Place By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town centre 
and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 
closing. 

 

ACRONYMS 

• ACE: Arts Council England 

• NPO: National Portfolio Organisation  
 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A ACE Feedback 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

  

  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Lydia Rusling, Assistant Director Economic Growth 

Signed off by: Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive 

Approved for publication: Cllr Richard Austin 

 

Page 30



Appendix A 

1 
 

22 November:  Feedback meeting with Arts Council England. 

29 November: Letter received from Arts Council England. 

Feedback letter from ACE: 

Applicant name: East Lindsey District Council 

Project number:  NPIP-00556915-MID-0000005491 

Programme: 2023-26 Investment Programme 

Congratulations on your successful application and, as discussed, I will be your Relationship Manager for 

this investment period. 

I have provided some feedback based on the assessment and outlined the decision-making process below. 

You should take this feedback into account when completing your updated Activity and Investment 

Principles Plans.  

Your application demonstrated that a strong contribution to the Outcomes is likely and your organisation is 

based in East Lindsey, which is a Priority Place.  

We also noted the following key strengths during the assessment;  

Outcomes  

The delivery plan is clear and ambitious and there are a number of notable strengths for each outcome. For 

Creative People this includes a clear commitment to developing opportunities for CYP and the development 

of Creative Hubs (supported by Town Deal funding) to catalyse activities in partnership with schools and 

colleges, cultural and community organisations to champion local creative talent; Creative Communities is 

also aligned to ‘Levelling Up and using Towns funding to develop new cultural amenities such as The 

Colonnade (Sutton on Sea) and better use of natural heritage throughout the year to provide more 

experiences for people;  And Creative Country will support the development of locally-based talent and 

building a cultural workforce (to collaborate regionally, nationally and internationally).  

Investment Principles 

There are notable ambitions and actions under each Investment Principle. Inclusivity has a 3 year aim to 

address the challenges of talent loss and bridge building for the area's diverse populations and we note 

partnerships with Lincoln College and Lincoln University for this. Dynamism includes support for board & 

workforce development and will equip staff with the skills to support a proposed substantial increase in 

artist & community involvement; Ambition & Quality offers good realistic 3 year ambitions aligned to local 

strategic plans to mobilise new ways of working, including utilising digital technology, rural touring, and the 

re-animation of heritage for contemporary cultural practice; And Environmental ambitions are very specific 

in terms of local challenges and we note the statement that ‘connecting culture to the natural environment 

through projects and infrastructure is critical’ 

Risk - The programme represents a minor risk for Governance and Management and a minor risk for 

Financial Viability.   

We note the following areas for development; 

• The NPO budget is presented in general terms and this needs to be developed in line with the 

agreed investment and activity as noted below. 

• We also noted that there was reference to commissioning other ACE funded organisations and care 

should be taken to ensure there is no duplication of ACE funding. 

Page 31



Appendix A 

2 
 

Activity  

We have made a reduced offer and the areas of work we expect to see preserved within the updated 

Activity Plan are activities 1, 3, 8 and 9 which, in summary, includes;  

Programmes of work with schools and young people; Digitisation of collections; Working across heritage 

and museum sites to enable stronger cultural programming including a focus on heritage within arts; 

Engagement with the new Cultural Strategy; And embedding approaches to supporting the involvement of 

Children and Young People.  

As per the application, we also expect to the development of three Creative Hubs to help deliver the 

activity (Boston Guildhall, Ayscoughfee Hall and The Colonnade at Sutton on Sea) and the establishment of 

a Culture Board to oversee the programme. 

Funding agreement negotiation  

I also wanted to provide you with a brief reminder of the process and key dates for funding agreement 

negotiation. You can find further information in the funding agreement negotiation letter attached to your 

conditional offer on Grantium.  

By 20 January 2023 you must submit the following documents for the period April 2023 – March 2024, 

based on the activity applied for and taking account of the feedback provided above: 

• a completed Activity Plan template  

• a completed Investment Principles Plan template  

• a completed financial template  
  

You must use the mandatory templates provided, which can be found on the website here. Updated 

templates must be attached to the ‘Submit updated plans for funding agreement negotiation’ screen of the 

conditional offer notification on Grantium and submitted no later than 20 January 2023. If you fail to supply 

the requested information on time, we cannot guarantee we will be able to issue you a funding agreement 

in line with our published timescales.  

If we feel that plans submitted in January require further development or revision, we will provide you with 

directive feedback and you may be asked to resubmit plans in April 2023 as a condition of first payment.  

John Cairns, Relationship Manager, Creative Media 

Arts Council England 

 

 

Page 32

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/qgBBCZVEESol3ZwuPB2A6?domain=artscouncil.org.uk


South & East 
Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership
National Portfolio Organisation

1 April 2023 - 31 March 2026

P
age 33



• East Lindsey and Boston have been 
designated as Priority Place by Arts Council 
England. 

• New Cultural Framework for Boston and 
East Lindsey (draft); proposed extension to 
reflect Partnership with South Holland. 
Funded by Arts Council England.

• Proven partnership working with existing 
NPO’s, Magna Vitae and Transported. 

About Us
The South & East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership provides one team to 
support East Lindsey District Council, 

Boston Borough Council and 
South Holland District Council

page 2

P
age 34



What is the problem and why the NPO?

Engagement

Lack of engagement 
with art and culture

Financial

Funding to support 
capacity, expertise, 

programming

Trust

Requirement to build 
trust with artists and 

cultural organisations

Cohesion

Need to support 
community cohesion 

and collaboration 
with external 
organisations 

Awareness

Connect to Pride in 
Place and attracting 

visitors

page 3

P
age 35



Boston

HUB: Guildhall

Links to: Fydell 
House, St Botolph’s, 

Blackfriars, Shodfriars

Building on: 
Empowering Healthy 

Communities, 
HE/HSTF Reports and 

Towns Fund

South Holland

HUB: Asycoughfee

Links to: Spalding 
Gentleman's Society 

and Town Centre

Building on: Town 
Centre Forums, 

Heritage Lottery Bid 
and connecting to 

Transported

East Lindsey

HUB: Colonnade

Links to: ‘Culture 
House’ (Towns Fund) 
and Sessions House 

(LUF bid)

Building on: Vital & 
Viable in Market 

Towns and 
connecting to MV

Solution
Cross district connections and a ‘Place’ focus 

with high status, nationally and internationally 
important stories

An artistic and cultural programme that will 
bring to life these stories to resonate through the 

development and growth of our towns, 
connecting to all our communities and building 

pride in our place and engaging new visitors

page 4

Connecting through a rich tapestry of recognisable, high status 
events and episodes from history, as well as the people that 
shaped our Fens, Coast and Maritime heritage…

P
age 36



Feedback from ACE on Activity Plan:
Programmes of work with schools and young people;
Digitisation of collections; 
Working across heritage and museum sites to enable stronger cultural programming including a 
focus on heritage within arts; 
Engagement with the new Cultural Strategy; 
And embedding approaches to supporting the involvement of Children and Young People. 

page 5

Board 
(Governance)

Accountable Body/ 

Council

Cultural Hubs

Culture 
Board

Support from 
SELCP (inc. 

Boston and South 
Holland Councils)

Asycoughfee 
Hall

Boston 
Guildhall

Accountable 
Body

Colonnade at 
Sutton on Sea

Development of three 
Creative Hubs to help 
deliver the activity 
(Boston Guildhall, 
Ayscoughfee Hall and 
The Colonnade at 
Sutton on Sea) and the 
establishment of a 
Culture Board to 
oversee the 
programme.

P
age 37



• Re-imagine 
culture: 
Programme of 
immersive 
commissions to 
re-ignite heritage 
assets. Driven by 
a engagement 
with schools and 
in community 
settings, to 
generate cultural 
renewal and 
enabling local 
people to create 
fresh narratives 
of belonging.

• Re-connect 
culture: 21st 
Century Digital 
Assets Collecting 
Programme 
capturing today’s 
stories around 
cultural diversity, 
migration and 
inclusion, with 
people from 
lower socio-
economic 
backgrounds and 
minority groups 
to foster new 
narratives. 

page 6

• Uplift culture. 
Introduce 
stronger cultural 
programming 
through working 
with partners to 
develop touring 
and visitor 
experiences to 
enhance and 
increase the 
reach of activities 
into all 
communities and 
a create a 
stronger cultural 
package for all.

• Activate culture: 
Collaboration and 
exchange 
programmes 
across the 
Midlands to 
establish the area 
as an exemplar 
hub for regional 
cultural 
development, 
with the inclusion 
of heritage within 
arts and culture.

Activity Plan Focus:

P
age 38



• 20 January – Activity Plan and Financial 
Profile for Year 1 funding submission to ACE

• Cabinet agreement for: ELDC as the 
Accountable Body; Support the Activity 
Plan; Support In-kind Commitment (Cultural 
Hubs – Boston Guildhall and Asycoughfee 
Hall); and Propose representative for the 
Culture Board

• 1 April 2023 - The 2023-26 Investment 
Programme will come into effect

Summary
Timeline

page 7

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

REPORT TO: Corporate and Community Committee 

DATE: 2nd February 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Budget Overview 2023/24 and Draft Budget 

 

To provide an overview of the draft budget for 2023/24 

KEY DECISION: No 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Jonathan Noble 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development 

Steven Houchin, Chief Finance Officer- Public Sector Partnership 

Services Ltd 

Samantha Knowles – Assistant Director – Finance 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the draft budget at Appendix A including the areas of pressure that will be 

considered as part of this year’s budget setting process, the details of the Councils Provisional 

Funding Settlement and the proposed level of Council Tax for 2023/24.   

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Corporate and Community Committee considers this report and provides feedback for 

Cabinet’s consideration at its February meeting. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

It is best practice for the scrutiny committee to be consulted. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4



1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1.  This year’s budget is being set within a background of unprecedented inflationary 

pressures and significant changes in resident, customer and business needs. Despite these 

challenges the Councils financial position means that it is well placed and able to take a 

considered approach to mitigating these exceptional challenges. In addition the Council 

has been and continues to be successful in drawing in significant capital and revenue 

investment for the area. 

 

1.2. Due to the complex financial environment specific elements of the budget at Appendix A 

are still being finalised as certain budgets are reviewed with the latest information 

available. 

 

2. Key Budget Pressures 

 

2.1. Identified below are major changes and key pressures that are being included within the 
proposed budget: 
 

• A pay award for 2022/23 was agreed in November 2022 averaging 5% across the pay 
spine. For 2023/24 a 5% award has been assumed, this allowance will be held 
corporately and adjusted to any savings target should it be settled at a lower level. 
This is one of the most significant impacts in the budget.  

• Pension contributions will be 23.6% in 2023/24 with an additional lump sum amount 
payable towards the deficit on the pension scheme. This rate is applied only to those 
staff in the local government pension scheme. The pension contribution rate is 
assumed to stay at 23.6% throughout the life of the MTFS. The lump sum towards the 
deficit is confirmed for 2023/24.    

• The return on cash investment reflects recent increases to Bank of England base rates 
which has increased significantly from the recent historic low levels. A further 
meeting of the MPC is on Thursday 2nd February. 

• Electricity and gas costs have been inflated for 2023/24 as a result of increased 
wholesale prices.  

• Vehicle fuel costs have also experienced inflationary pressures. 

• Increased contract costs are similarly a feature of the budget albeit officers and 
members are working closely to seek to manage these implications and impacts. 

 
3. Council Tax & Business Rates 

 
3.1. The previous Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) committed to a Council Tax increase 

in line with the maximum allowed under the recent Local Government Settlement, for BBC 

in 2023/24 this is a £6.03 increase (3%) and will generate a yield of £167,491. The increase 

is reflected through the life of the MTFS.   

 

3.2. The tax base projections for 2023/24 indicate growth of 223 band D equivalent properties.  

Future growth has been projected at 1.50%.   

 

 

 Page 42



3.3. Business Rates 

 

3.4. Business rates information is still being reviewed as a result of a number of changes including 

the inflation measure used to increase the local government funding amount within the 

Settlement Funding Amount using the CPI September indicator 10.1% instead of the RPI 

September Indicator (12.6%).  

 

3.5. The National Non-Domestic Rates Form (NNDR1) production is now particularly important 

in terms of changes to the business rate yield which heavily influences not just our own 

budgets but also the Pool we are part of within Lincolnshire and significantly the County 

Council. This is an area of significant focus as we seek to understand the changes within 

the yield particularly as a result of Covid and changes as result of the Business rate 

revaluation 2023. 

 

4. Local Government Settlement 

 

4.1. The provisional local government settlement delivered on 19th December 2022 provided 

the following support: 

 

 

4.2. The 2023-24 local government finance settlement is for one year only and is based on the 

Spending Review 2021 (SR21) funding levels, updated for the 2022 Autumn Statement 

announcements.  The main points are set out below: 

 

• The Funding Guarantee replaces the Lower Tier Services Grant.  This grant is intended to 

provide a funding floor for all local authorities, so that no local authority would see an 

increase in Core Spending Power that is lower than 3%, before any decisions about 

organisational efficiencies, use of reserves or council tax levels are taken. 

• Revenue Support Grant has been increased in line with what would have been the increase 

to the multiplier; there have also been existing grants rolled into the RSG amounts. 

Local Government Provisional 
Settlement Information 

Boston Borough Council 

2022/23 Budget 
2023/24 Provisional 

Settlement 
Difference 22/23 - 23/24 

 
  £'000 £'000 £'000  

Revenue Support Grant 323 433 110  

Rural Services Delivery grant 89 89 0  

Lower Tier Services Grant 124 0 -124  

Service Grant 186 105 -81  

Sub Total 722 627 -95  

Funding Guarantee (3%) 0 472 472  

Sub Total 722 1099 377  

New Home Bonus 697 288 -409  

Total Funding 1,419 1,387 -32  

Page 43



• Local Government Funding Reform – As per the published Policy Statement, the Review of 

Relative Needs and Resources (‘Fair Funding Review’) and a reset of Business Rates growth 

will not be implemented in the next two years. 

 

5. Internal Drainage Boards 

 

5.1 Internal Drainage Board (IDB) levy increases are still being finalised and are expected to be 

very substantial increases on previous years due to the extensive use of power and fuel for 

the activities that these organisations undertake.  The 2022/23 cost is £2.15m and a series 

of increases have been indicated from 9% to 20%.  

5.2 The Council is liaising with the local Internal Drainage Boards who have been trying to limit 

future increases where possible but proving impossible with the increases in power costs 

being experienced. Significant representations have been and continue to be made to 

government due to the substantial loss of income to the Council, as this was previously 

funded through Revenue Support Grant (RSG). This embedded levy can no longer be 

afforded having a significant impact every year that passes on the ability of the Council to 

finance the services it is providing and putting it at a disadvantage to the majority of the 

Councils in England, with only a handful of councils impacted upon in this way. 

5.3 The Council has been in detailed discussion with government officers regarding this position 

over the past year. We are also aware that the IDB’s have made extensive representations 

to DEFRA and via ADA of this significant issue. A formal opportunity to engage with 

Government on this matter has now been offered and officers are in the process of seeking 

to arrange this meeting as a matter of priority between Leaders, MPs and the relevant 

minister.  

Council Total Council 
Tax 
Received per 
year 22/23 

Total IDB levy 
per year 
22/23 

Proposed 
increase 23/24 

Council 
Tax 22/23 
Increase 
3% 
raises 

Boston 
Borough 
Council 

 
£4.1m 

 
£2.1m 

 
£233k 

 
£167k 

 

 

6. BALANCING THE BUDGET 

 

6.1 In terms of balancing the budget the following areas have been identified as key areas to be 

considered as part of the final budget setting: 

 

Short Term 

• The potential use of reserves to support one off pressures and for invest to save 

initiatives; 

• Use of the New Homes Bonus to support the revenue account whilst medium term 

activity is actioned; 

• Continued work to engage on the Internal Drainage Board financing challenge; 
Page 44



• Review of all new pressures and service budgets to consider efficiency opportunities 

and alternative options. 

Medium Term 

• Work with PSPS in terms of its transformation plans for the future; 

• Driving transformational change using the SELCP sub-regional partnership as a driver for 

innovation and efficiency. 

• Reviewing all assets to maximise income and efficiency of use. 

• Delivering and supporting economic growth  

• Reviews of fees and charges in light of inflationary increases in costs, where 

appropriate; 

 

6.2 Detailed efficiency and transformation plans are being put together for members 

consideration as part of this budget setting process. 

 

7. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

 

7.1 The Capital Programme has been updated to reflect the approvals during the year and also 

slippage on the Towns Fund Programme which is not unusual for a programme of this size 

and scale. 

7.2  In March 2022 Full Council and Cabinet considered the full business case for the 

refurbishment of Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre which was agreed for submission, subject 

to any necessary amendments.  Officers were tasked with undertaking a public consultation 

exercise which took place in October 2022 and refining the proposals prior to the 

submission of a planning application which was submitted in January 2023.  

7.3 In supporting the project Members noted the requirement to provide funding for it and in 

principle supported future revisions to the capital programme and Treasury Management 

Strategy/Prudential Indicators that would be required to finance the project and to enable 

delivery.  The costs to date for the refined proposals are in-line with the costs referenced in 

the business case.   

7.4 The scheme is now amended in the 2023/24 capital programme with funding identified 

from Towns funding and the re-profiling of the use of reserves (excluding VAT and 

inflation).  It is intended that any balance of funding will be sought through a future 

operating model, in respect of which the results of a competitive process would not be 

known until the summer of 2023, and also consideration of any additional funding that the 

Council may have access to.  The capital programme reflects the March 2022 decision, 

noting the requirement for planning approval and a satisfactory operating 

model/appropriate funding being secured before the award of a contract for construction. 

This allows time for proper deliberation on future operating models for the incoming 

Executive and Scrutiny. The Treasury Management Strategy for the Council will have the 

flexibility within it to borrow in accordance with prudent gains achieved from an alternative 

operating model to complete the funding to deliver the scheme.  

 

 Page 45



8. CONCLUSION  

 

8.1. Extensive work is underway to finalise the budget working with our key Partner in the 

provision of this service PSPS Ltd. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

 
This report enables Boston Borough Council to set a budget and a level of Council Tax for 2023/24. 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

NONE 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

NONE 

STAFFING 

The Equality Act requires SHDC to consider any equality impacts in relation to staff from these 

plans. As projects within the programme are developed a draft impact assessment will be 

discussed with Trades Unions and staff, and especially as individual projects are delivered. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report is required by virtue of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the 

Localism Act 2011.  

DATA PROTECTION 

None 

FINANCIAL 

None 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

Done 
 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

The Council has a legal duty to consult residents on its draft budget proposals. Views expressed 

during the consultation period will be included within the financial budget setting report.  

REPUTATION 

None 

CONTRACTS 

None Page 46



CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

New Equality Impact Assessments will be developed and published wherever these are required 

and will be made available during the management and decision-making of the Programme. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Cabinet 17th January 2023 

Audit and Governance 31st January 2023 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance  

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk 

Steven Houchin, Chief Finance Officer, Public Sector 

Partnership Services Ltd 

Steven.Houchin@PSPSL.co.uk  

Signed off by: Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive 

Corporate Development 

Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Finance Portfolio Holder  

 

Page 47

mailto:sknowles@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Steven.Houchin@PSPSL.co.uk
mailto:Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT OF JONATHAN NOBLE, FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

(Authors: Christine Marshall (Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development) and Samantha 
Knowles (Assistant Director - Finance)) 

 
DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND ASSOCIATED FINANCIAL STRATEGIES - 2023/24-2027/28 – 

FOR CONSULTATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Appendix A  

P
age 49



Page 2 of 28 

 

FOREWORD TO THE BUDGET FROM COUNCILLOR JONATHAN NOBLE - FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

The creation of next year’s budget has been most challenging.  It has been set within a background of unprecedented inflationary pressures and 
significant changes in resident, customer and business needs. Despite these challenges, the Councils financial position means that it is well placed 
and able to take a considered approach to mitigating these exceptional challenges. 
 
The Government has provided a one-year settlement which has taken some uncertainty away regarding certain grants, however, the uncertainty 
remains significant and into the medium-term. 
 
Boston Borough Council remains sovereign in terms of its constitution and budget, as do the Councils we partner with, and our BBC priorities are 
to ensure that the Council remains financially resilient, able to deliver services it has to by law, and to provide support to the District’s most 
vulnerable residents. Secondly, to continue the process of redressing the imbalances created by the COVID-19 pandemic by appropriately 
focussing on the provision of financial support to underpin economic recovery for the District and seeking to invest in our places. 
 
Despite the challenges of the pandemic over the past few years, work to develop new opportunities, efficiencies and income streams to support 
the Council’s revenue budget have continued. 
 
A significant element of the Council’s budget is the Drainage Board Levy. Like the Council, the drainage boards are also experiencing increased 
cost demands.  The Council is liaising with the Boards, who are attempting to limit future increases, where possible.  This is proving increasingly 
difficult with significant increases in power costs being experienced. Representations to government have been made and continue to be made 
due to the substantial loss of income to the Council (as the levy was previously funded through Revenue Support Grant (RSG) but this is no longer 
the case). 
 
Another key component of the council’s budget is its share of business rates income which is currently being reviewed and will be updated before 
the budget is finalised.  In addition, inflationary pressures have been seen across all areas of the council’s budget, particularly pay, contracts, 
utilities and fuel. 
 
The proposed council tax increase for 2023/24 is an annual increase of £6.03 for a band D property.  
 
A series of short and medium term mitigations have been identified to balance the budget and these will be detailed further once the final budget 
for 2023/24 is produced. 
 
 
The Council’s revenue budget already provides for some annual contributions towards capital investment and we are delivering on our commitment 
to increase these by operating in a more commercial and business-like way to increase our ability to generate future capital receipts. 
 

P
age 50



Page 3 of 28 

 

The Council has maintained a capital resource base commensurate with our capital delivery ambitions. 
 
The Budget for 2023/24 proposes: 
 

• A Council Tax increase of £6.03 per year (for Band D homes this is equivalent to 11p per week). 

• To continue with the generation of additional efficiencies, shared services and income from commercial activities guided by our Delivery 

Plans. 

• Increased capital investment in Council assets to help generate new income streams, reduce running costs and help deliver services more 

efficiently.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTENTS PAGE 
 

 

P
age 51



Page 4 of 28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLES:-                  PAGE 
 
1. Assumptions Which Influence The 5 Year Financial Strategy        8 
2. Business Rates              11 
3. Council Tax              12 
4.  Precepting Authority Band D Charges          13 
5.  Revenue Support Grant And Other Government Grants       14 
6.  New Homes Bonus             15 
7.  Fees, Charges And Rental Income          16 
8.  Other Income             17 
9.  All Sources Of Income            18 
10.  Spending Plans             19 
11.  Budget Requirement            21 
12. Year Capital Programme, Funding And Resource Implication       24 
13. Treasury Assumptions            27 
14.  Savings Target             33 
15.  Key Risks              35 

SECTION CONTENT PAGE NUMBER 
 Portfolio Holder introduction 3 
1 Executive Summary and Introduction 5 
2 Budget Assumptions 7 
3 Resources 9 
4 Spending Plans 18 
5 Council Tax Requirement 20 
6 Other Budget Issues 21 
7 Reserves 22 
8 Consultation 24 
9 
10 

Savings Targets 
South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership Plans 

25 
26 

11 Risk and Sensitivity 27 
12 Capital Programme 29 
13 Options 31 
14 Reasons for Recommendations 31 
15 Recommendations 31 

P
age 52



Page 5 of 28 

 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
 

 2022/23 2023/24 

Boston Borough Council Precept £4.068m £4.235m 

Council Tax Increase 2.50% 2.97% 

Council Tax Band D £202.86 £208.89 

Government Funding £1.416m £1.387m 

Retained Business Rates used to support budget £0.769m £4.208m 

Boston Town Area Committee Special Expense Account 
(3.95% increase proposed) 

£0.733m £0.764m 

Earmarked Reserves (at 1 April) £18.348m £10.283m 

 
   

 
  
 

P
age 53



Page 6 of 28 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This appendix sets out the draft combined 2023/24 budget estimates and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the period 2023/24 
to 2027/28 for the Council’s General Fund. The Medium Term Strategy sets out the current and forecast future costs of the Council and is 
linked to the Corporate Plan and Delivery Plan, which sets out the aims and ambitions of the Council... 

 
1.2 The MTFS establishes a set of financial policies and principles which aim to provide a sound basis for maintaining the financial integrity of 

the Council over the medium term.   
 
1.3 This Appendix sets out: 
 

• The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28. 
• The 2023/24 General Fund Revenue Budget & Financing. 
• The General Fund Reserves Position. 
• The General Fund Capital Programme and Financing. 
• Risks, key issues, sensitivity and monitoring. 
• Treasury management policy and investment strategy (to follow in final budget report). 

 
1.4 The unprecedented challenges faced by all of us in 2021/22, 2022/23 have continued into 2023/24, with significant inflationary pressures. 

The government settlement delivered in mid December for Boston included New Homes Bonus (£288k) and 3% funding guarantee (£472k).   
 
1.5 In 2023/24 a budget is proposed that allows expenditure to be financed through the use of reserves in order to smooth the impact of the 

council’s ongoing pressure, significant savings are required going forward as a result of increased inflationary costs and other cost pressures, 
including substantial pressure from the IDB levy. This means that the Council can continue to provide services whilst also supporting its 
overall objectives. The Council will continue to strive to be as efficient as possible in all its work, building on the South and East Lincolnshire 
Council’s Partnership with its partners at East Lindsey District Council, South Holland District Council and PSPS, whilst ensuring it maximises 
the income it receives  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54



Page 7 of 28 

 

2. BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 Table 1 – Assumptions which influence the five year financial strategy 
 

Assumption 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Budgeted inflation1 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Pay costs increase 2 2% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 

Full Time Equivalent Employees 3 234.99 244.71 242.60 235.74 230.74 230.74 

Staffing levels4 99% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 

Pension contribution rate – current 
service cost 5 

17.7% 23.6% 23.6% 23.6% 23.6% 23.6% 

Pension contribution cash amount 
to fund deficit on scheme 5 

£745,000 £687,000 £713,000 £741,000 £741,000 £741,000 

Return on cash investments6 0.10% 3.90% 2.80% 2.10% 2.00% 2.30% 

Return on property funds 7  3.60% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 
Utility cost rises 8 30% 150% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Fuel cost rises9 5% 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Tax base 10 2.2% 1.1% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 

 
Notes to Assumptions 
These assumptions reflect, where known, future changes which may arise from the implementation of the council’s organisational development 
plans including the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership with South Holland District Council and East Lindsey District Council (see 
Section 7). 

 
 

1. Although inflation does affect the price of supplies and services that the Council procures, because services are given cash limited 
budgets they have to absorb the cost of inflation within the resources they have – as such the net impact of inflation is reduced to zero 
within the estimates. The only exceptions are those contracts which have an agreed inflationary arrangement built into them, we expect 
that contract costs will substantially increase on renew. 

2. The nationally agreed pay award ended on 31st March 2022. An award for 2022/23 was agreed November 2022 averaging 7% across 
the pay spine. For 2023/24 onwards a 5% award has been prudently assumed.  

3. Increase in FTE is as a result of Fixed Term contracts and transferred posts from previous shared arrangements? 
4. An annual General Fund saving in staff costs (£353k) is built into the budget (equivalent to 4% of the staff budget) due to anticipated 

staff vacancies during the year.  

P
age 55



Page 8 of 28 

 

5. Based on the Pension Triennial Valuation the pension contribution will be 23.8% in 2023/24 with an additional lump sum amount 
payable towards the deficit on the pension scheme – this rate is applied only to those staff in the local government pension scheme. A 
further review will take place which could change the amount from 2027/28 onwards. Any vacant posts are assumed to be within the 
pension scheme. The pension contribution rate is assumed to stay at 23.8% throughout the life of the MTFS. The lump sum towards 
the deficit is confirmed for 2023/24.   

6. These are the estimated returns on cash.  
7. These are the estimated returns on the Property Fund that the council holds. 
8. Utility costs have been inflated by 150% for 2023/24 as a result of increased wholesale prices. These will need to be kept under review, 

as it is an area that could be subject to future inflationary pressures.  
9. Vehicle fuel costs are predicted to increase by 25% due to national trends. 
10. The tax base projections for 2023/24 has provided for a growth of 223 band D equivalent properties. Future growth has been projected 

at 1.5% (see section 4.6 and Table 3).   
 

3. RESOURCES  
 
3.1 The following section of the Appendix outlines the resources that will be available to the Council under 6 headings, Business Rates, 

Council Tax, Revenue Support Grant and other Government Grants, New Homes Bonus, Fees and Charges and Other Income. 
 

3.2 On 19th December 2022 the Local Government Finance Settlement 2023/24 was delivered. The papers included a continuation of New 
Homes Bonus for 2023/24 and a new grant stream called Funding Guarantee, replacing the Lower Tier Service grant.  
 

3.3 As part of the policy statement it was confirmed there would be no review or business rates or funding formula for at least 2 years. 
 

3.4 As a result of this announcement it makes planning the years from 2025/26 onwards very difficult as many things could change because 
of these planned reviews and resets. As and when further announcements are made Members will be kept up to date accordingly and the 
financial impact assessed. 
 
 
 

4. SPENDING PLANS 
 
4.1 Under the current arrangements for retained Business Rates, where a Council collects rates above an assessed baseline level set by the 

Government, a 50% levy is applied that is paid to the Government. In order to avoid this 50% levy a business rates pool was adopted with 
the County Council and other districts within Lincolnshire. 

 

P
age 56



Page 9 of 28 

 

4.2 A revaluation exercise for business rates will take effect from 1 April 2023. The Council is expecting a number of appeals against the 
revaluation. A provision has been put aside based on intelligence from the Council’s advisors to hopefully cover any effects from this but 
there still remains a large amount of uncertainty in this area. 

 
4.3 Table 2 provides details of the anticipated business rates figures for 2022/23 and provisional figures for 2023/24 through to 2027/28.  

 

 
4.4 It is important that members note that the potential changes to the retention of Business Rates from 2023/24 presents a significant 

uncertainty around future funding levels. It is very likely that as part of the ongoing reassessment of Area Needs the Government may 
significantly change the current baseline levels. As such the current amount of retained business rates that the Council is experiencing 
could be significantly reduced under these new arrangements. 
 

 
Table 2 – Business Rates (Subject to Review) 
 

  

Budget Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Retained Business Rates (7,427) (7,847) (8,004) (8,164) (8,328) (8,495) 

S31 Grants relating to Business Rates (2,018) (2,645) (2,698) (2,752) (2,807) (2,863) 

Tariff 5,141 5,247 5,352 5,459 5,568 5,679 

Pre– levy income (4,304) (5,244) (5,350) (5,457) (5,566) (5,678) 

Renewable Energy (100% retained by 
Boston BC) 

(203) (189) (193) (197) (201) (205) 

Levy payment to Lincolnshire Pool 237 298 304 310 316 323 

Estimated (Surplus)/Deficit) on 
Collection Fund 

3,501 739 0 0 0 0 

Net Retained Business Rates Income (769) (4,208) (5,046) (5,147) (5,251) (5,356) 

 
 

*The unusually high deficit is mainly as a result of retail reliefs granted to businesses because of the COVID-19 pandemic. These reliefs have been fully funded by the 
government and the income received in 2020/21 and 2021/22 therefore is covered by a reserve contribution shown in table 8. 

 

P
age 57



Page 10 of 28 

 

4.5 As well as the potential for the authority to attract additional income through retained business rates there is also the risk of uncertainty 
through a reduction in the amount of business rates that it collects, this has been further exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. This 
coupled with uncertainties relating to appeals against rateable values for business premises, with the potential for successful appeals 
being backdated makes estimating income accurately extremely challenging and potentially volatile. 
 

Council Tax 
 
4.6 The MTFS assumes a Council Tax increase in line with the maximum allowed under the Local Government Settlement. In the case of 

BBC for 2023/24 this is a £6.03 (2.97%) per annum increase (for band D properties). The increase is reflected through the life of the 
MTFS. See Table 3 below for the estimated changes in the tax base and council tax collected. 

 
 
 Table 3 – Council Tax 
   

  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 
       

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

Council Tax base (Band D 
equivalents) 

20,051 20,274 20,578 20,887 21,200 21,518 

  
     

Council Tax Band D 202.86 208.89 213.84 218.79 223.74 228.69 

Annual Increase £ 4.95 6.03 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 

Annual Increase % 2.50% 2.97% 2.37% 2.31% 2.26% 2.21% 

Gross Council Tax collected  £4,067,546 £4,235,036 £4,400,423 £4,569,819 £4,743,307 £4,920,971 

In year Surplus / (deficit)  £86,654 -£28,346 £0 £0 £0 £0 

TOTAL £4,154,200 £4,206,690 £4,400,423 £4,569,819 £4,743,307 £4,920,971 

 
 
4.7 The tax base for 2023/24 has been increased by 1.11% and by 1.50% per annum thereafter. This is based on the latest projected house 

building trajectory. 
 
 
 

P
age 58



Page 11 of 28 

 

BTAC expenses 
 
 

  2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

 2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

 BTAC Expenses 733 764 762 784 808 808 

 
 
Table 4 – Precepting Authority Band D charges  
 

Authority Proposed Band D 
amount  

(£.p) 

Increase over 
2022/23 

£ 

Increase over 
2022/23 

% 

Lincolnshire County Council  TBC TBC TBC 

Police and Crime 
Commissioner  

TBC TBC TBC 

Boston BC £208.89 £6.03 2.97% 

Parishes (average)  TBC TBC TBC 

 
 
 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Section 31 Grants 
 
  
4.8 The table below currently builds in the assumption that RSG will continue throughout the MTFS period until such time as we have more 

information regarding the outcome of the fairer funding review. Other than S31 grants for Business Rates (see table 2) the other main non-

specific grants received by the Council relate to the Rural Services Delivery Grant (RSDG) and the newly announced Funding Guarantee 

grant. RSDG for 2023/24 is proposed to be £89k and the Funding Guarantee grant is £472k for 2023/24, the future of this grant into the 

longer term is not known however it now incorporates the previous Lower Tier Grant.  

 

 

 

 

P
age 59



Page 12 of 28 

 

Table 5 - Revenue Support Grant and other Non-Specific S31 Government Grants 
 

  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revenue Support Grant 323 433 433 433 433 433 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 89 89 89 89 89 89 

Lower Tier Services Grant 121 0 0 0 0 0 

Services Grant 2022/23 186 105 105 105 105 105 

Funding Guarantee (3%) 0 472 472 472 472 472 

Total Received 719 1,099 1,099 1,099 1,099 1,099 

Annual Change is resource (398) 377 0 0 0 0 

 
 
New Homes Bonus 
 
4.9 New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocations were announced as part of the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2023/24 only as far as we 

are aware. The government has added a year of additional grant, as previously announced, the 2021/22 “in year” allocations did not have 
future years legacy payments nor has the 2023/24 allocation. If the scheme was to be continued in its current form next years payment 
would reflect just the growth in the previous year. 
 
 

4.10 In light of current funding pressures and element of the New Homes Bonus is being used to support budgetary pressures (£288k).  
 
Table 6 – New Homes Bonus estimates  

 

   Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

New Homes Bonus (697) (288) - - - - 

 
 

P
age 60



Page 13 of 28 

 

Fees and Charges 
 
4.11 The Council is dependent on direct payment for many of its services in the form of various fees, charges and rents. Fees and charges play 

an important role in the effective delivery of services; they not only raise income but can control access to services, help the council 
respond to competition, fund investment and guide client behaviour.   

 
4.12 In some cases the levels of fees are set by the Government and the Council has no control over what is charged. Where the Council has 

had control it has not always increased these charges in line with inflation or other market conditions. Given future uncertainty around 
levels of government grant support and business rates income, the Council will have to develop policies for continually reviewing its fees 
and charges in order to maintain this income at current or higher levels. A review of fees and charges in light of inflationary pressures is 
currently underway. 

 
Table 7 – Fees and charges income budgets 
 

Budget Area 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Leisure income 918 820 820 820 820 820 

Building control 170 170 170 170 170 170 

Licensing 131 131 131 131 131 131 

Land charges 78 78 78 78 78 78 

Bereavement 900 934 934 934 934 934 

Garden Waste 628 644 739 739 739 739 

Trade waste 355 402 402 402 402 402 

Planning fees 633 645 652 655 655 655 

Parking 1019 1019 1019 1019 1019 1019 

Markets 95 95 95 95 95 95 

Other small areas 155 220 180 180 220 180 

TOTAL FEE INCOME 5,081 5,158 5,220 5,222 5,262 5,222 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 61



Page 14 of 28 

 

Other Income 
 
4.13 The Council also receives other forms of income, as shown in the following table. 
 
Table 8 – Other Income 
 
 

  2022/23* 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Interest on Investments 960  1,597  1,597  1,597  1,597  1,597  

Housing Benefit Subsidy 11,618  11,210  11,210  11,210  11,210  11,210  

Housing Benefit/Universal Credit Overpayments 120  120  120  120  120  120  

Council tax and Housing benefit administration 
grant 

285  285  285  285  285  285  

Specific Government Grants 720  736  707  297  297  297  

Court Income & Council Tax Penalties 251  251  251  251  251  251  

Rental income 696  967  967  966  965  964  

NNDR admin grant 92  92  92  92  92  92  

Other Contributions (from external bodies for 
sharing of services and posts) 

1,392  1,522  1,527  1,543  1,565  1,588  

Other Income 1,250  1,241  1,241  1,201  1,201  1,201  

Use of Reserves 5,182  4,315  761   (204)   (204)   (13)  

Total Other Income 22,564  22,335  18,758  17,357  17,378  17,591  

 

• Use of Reserve values will change as and when new schemes are approved for inclusion within the programme. 
 

• Reductions in the Housing Benefit Subsidy income is due to a realignment of the budget to reflect current anticipated levels of 
activity – especially with the roll out of Universal Credit. There is a corresponding reduction in expenditure in section 4 below.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 62



Page 15 of 28 

 

Summary  
 

Table 9 – All sources of income  
 

 

 2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

 
Business Rates 

769 4,208 5,046 5,147 5,251 5,356 

  
Revenue Support Grant 

323 433 433 433 433 433 

Lower Tier Services Grant 121 - - - - - 

2022/23 Services Grant 186 105 105 105 105 105 

Funding Guarantee (3%) 0 472 472 472 472 472 

 
Rural Services Delivery Grant 

89 89 89 89 89 89 

 
New Homes Bonus 

697 288 - - - - 

 
Council Tax  

4,154 5,490 4,400 4,570 4,743 4,921 

 
Funding subtotal 

6,339 9,802 10,545 10,816 11,093 11,376 

 
Fees, Charges, Rents 

5,081 5,158 5,220 5,222 5,262 5,222 
 

 
Other Income 

22,564 22,335 18,758 17,357 17,378 17,591 
 

 
Fees, Charges & Other Income subtotal 

27,646 27,493 23,977 22,579 22,641 22,813 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 63



Page 16 of 28 

 

4. 2023/24 SPENDING PLANS 
 
4.14 Table 10 below shows the estimated Council spending plans for the next 5 years. It shows expenditure analysed by the CIPFA Standard 

classification. The paragraphs below the table provide explanations for the main variances across the MTFS.  
 

4.15 The table below summarises the main changes in expenditure budgets between 2022/23 and 2023/24. The ongoing delivery of the 

Council’s Efficiencies and Transformation Programme may introduce further changes in the year ahead and over the  Medium Term.   

 
 Table 10 – Spending Plans  
 
 

  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Employees 9,768 10,595 11,214 11,230 11,432 11,689 

Premises 1,605 2,415 2,419 2,424 2,414 2,433 

Transport 335 406 400 401 403 404 

Supplies and Services 6,969 6,947 6,326 6,037 6,116 6,187 

Third Party Payments 159 164 164 164 164 164 

Drainage Board Levies  2,150 2,350 2,350 2,350 2,350 2,350 

Parish Councils’ Precepts 509 520 530 540 551 562 

Transfer Payments 11,618 11,210 11,210 11,210 11,210 11,210 

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 1,888 4,330 971 100 100 100 

Interest Payable on Borrowing 494 494 494 494 494 494 

Minimum Revenue Provision 15 15 15 15 15 15 

Gross Expenditure 35,511 39,444 36,093 34,964 35,248 35,607 

 
Employee costs have been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy. Pay generally has been increased by salary increments due to 

staff, and by an estimated 5% increase in 2023/24 and 2% thereafter. Pension cost estimates have been prepared on the basis of current staff in 

the pension scheme at October 2022/23, and all vacant posts assumed to be within the pension scheme. There have been some staffing 

changes which are mainly grant funded as a result of successful bidding to government departments. The employee costs also include the latest 

results of the Pension Triennial Review. 

 

P
age 64



Page 17 of 28 

 

Premises budgets have increased in 2023/24. The main increase being the cost of utility wholesale increases in the price of gas and electricity. 

There has been an assumption of a 150% increase in the cost of utilities. 

 

Transport costs have increased from 2022/23 levels due to the 25% increase in Fuel and additional maintenance costs associated with the 

vehicle fleet.  

 

Supplies and Services budgets have increased slightly mainly due to increases in audit Fees, banking charges, agreed increases in council 

contracts in relation to RPI, additional inflationary costs in Environmental services and Homelessness. 

 

Internal Drainage Board (IDB) increases, in total average 10% for 2023/24. Post 2023/24 increases have been estimated at this time, with an 

increase of 0% p.a. assumed thereafter until further information has been provided by the Internal Drainage Boards. At a time of significant 

increases in rising energy cost it would be safe to assume that increases will be greater than in previous years. The Council is liaising with the 

local Internal Drainage Boards to work towards limiting future increases where possible. Lobbying of government is also underway with the 

impact of this loss of revenue to the Council due to the embedded levy having an impact every year that passes. 

 

Transfer Payments – There is a reduction to reflect the current estimated expenditure on benefits, there is a reduction in the budget for rent 

allowance payments (with an offsetting reduction in benefits income – see table 10 above)  

 
Capital Charges – Changes in capital charges relate to revisions to the capital programme between years which do not affect the General Fund 

bottom line as they funded from reserves. 

 
Third party payments - These budgets reflect payments to Public Sector Partnership Services and other outside bodies. 

 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 65



Page 18 of 28 

 

5. BUDGET REQUIREMENT 
 

5.1 The budget requirement is formed by comparing resource prediction and spending plans. 

 
Table 11 – Requirement Budget 
 

 2022/23 
Estimate 

 
£’000 

2023/24 
Estimate 

 
£’000 

2024/25 
Estimate 

 
£’000 

2025/26 
Estimate 

 
£’000 

2026/27 
Estimate 

 
£’000 

2027/28 
Estimate 

 
£’000 

Fees, Charges & Other Income 
(table 9) 

(27,646) (27,493) (23,977) (22,579) (22,641) (22,813) 

Gross Expenditure (table 10) 35,511 39,444 36,093 34,964 35,248 35,607 

Efficiency Target (282) (867) (278) (244) (155) (47) 

Net Budget 7,582 11,084 11,837 12,141 12,452 12,746 

 Funded By             

Retained Business rates (769) (4,208) (5,046) (5,147) (5,251) (5,356) 

Revenue Support Grant (323) (433) (433) (433) (433) (433) 

Lower Tier Services Grant (121) 0 0 0 0 0 

2022/23 Service Grant (186) (105) (105) (105) (105) (105) 

Funding Guarantee (3%) 0 (472) (472) (472) (472) (472) 

Rural Services Delivery Grant (89) (89) (89) (89) (89) (89) 

New Homes Bonus (697) (288) 0 0 0 0 

BTAC (733) (764) (762) (784) (808) (808) 

Parish Precepts (509) (520) (530) (540) (551) (562) 

Council Tax (4,154) (4,207) (4,400) (4,570) (4,743) (4,921) 

Total Funding (7,582) (11,084) (11,837) (12,141) (12,452) (12,746) 

 
 
5.2 Based on current assumptions the Council has a significant efficiency target for 2023/24 which plans are already underway to address. With 

uncertainty around Business Rates after 2023/24 as mentioned earlier it is very unclear at this stage what the financial impact will be.  
 
 
 

P
age 66



Page 19 of 28 

 

5.3 Boston Area Town Committee 

 
5.3.1.1 Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) special expenses are a separate charge to the residents of Boston for services provided in their 

town and are charged as a supplement to the main council tax. The BTAC budget for 2023/24 is estimated at £763,636 (2022/23 - 

£732,864). 

  

6. OTHER BUDGET ISSUES 
 

In order to meet its obligations, equality impact assessments will be carried out when the nature of proposed changes to services and the 
potential mitigation (if any) is clear, so that the implications of decisions are fully understood as they affect specific groups and communities. 
These have been, and will continue to be, regularly undertaken and considered as part of the decision making process.  

 
  
7. RESERVES  
 
7.1 In order to comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Authority must undertake a review of the level of reserves 

as part of annual budget preparation. A review of the reserves has been undertaken to make sure that they have a defined purpose, identified 
and approved values for additions to and usage of each reserve, and that they are set at an appropriate value which identifies the current 
and future requirements and risks the Council might face. This has included  an assessment of risk registers, pressures upon services, 
inflation and interest rates and any underwriting arrangements. The proposed budget has been developed on the basis of not requiring any 
long term support from reserves for the revenue budget 

 
General Reserves 
 

The General Fund balance is estimated to stand at £2.0m for the next five years, which the Council’s Section 151 Officer believes to be 
prudent for the Council at this time. 

 
Specific Reserves 
 

Specific reserves are set up to provide funds for known future commitments or provide resources for unexpected events. Given the risks 
and uncertainties facing both the local and national economy the Council is committed to retaining robust levels of reserves, whilst ensuring 
resources are available to enable efficient service delivery.  
 
 
 

P
age 67



Page 20 of 28 

 

  2023/24     2023/24 

  £’000     £’000 

Contribution To Reserves     Contribution From Reserves   

          

Capital Funding Reserve     Capital Funding Reserve   

Revenue contribution      Information Technology Infrastructure Refresh 100 

Bereavement fee increase payback -12 
  

Vehicle Replacement - Ford Transit Tipper Vans 350 
x 4 (2 caged)  

56 

RHI Investment payback  -124   Mobile Phone refresh 30 

Cont to replacement freighter  -7   Members device refresh 41 

Fleet payback  -200   Laptop refresh 25 

Transformation Reserve:     Firewall and Proxy Refresh 55 

PSPS Contract Smoothing  0   Towns Fund - Leisure 3,944 

Repairs and Renewals Reserve:      IT Reserve   

CCTV R&R -35   Information Technology Infrastructure Refresh 20 

      Transformation Reserve:   

Contribution To Reserves Total -379   District Council Elections 128 
 

   Planning Assistant  20 
    Temporary S113 staffing - Env Services project  5 
    Crowd fund annual cost  11 
  

  Community Leadership  22 

    Insurance Reserve 
             

-    
    Housing Reserve 62 
    Repairs & Maint Reserve   
    Funding Volatility Reserve   
  

  NNDR deficit TBC 174 
  

  Contribution From Reserves Total 4,694 
  

  Net Contribution From / (to) Reserves 4,315 

 
 

 

P
age 68



Page 21 of 28 

 

8. CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
 
8.1 In drawing together the proposed capital programme we have taken a five year view from 2023/24 to 2027/28, to run alongside our revenue plans. This is 

sensible and encourages a link between revenue and capital spending decisions. 

 
Table 12 – Capital Programme  
 

Ref  Capital Programme £’000 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

1 Disables Facilities Grant 630 630 630 630 630 
2 Housing Strategy Costs-Waterloo Housing, 80 new affordable homes 49                 -                  -                  -                  -  
3 Multi Use Games Area (Controlling Migration Funding)                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
4 Resurfacing & footpath improvements                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
5 Information Technology Infrastructure Refresh 120 194 100 100 100 
6 Vehicle Replacement - Grounds Maintenance - Mowers x 3                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
7 Vehicle Replacement - Ford Transit Tipper Vans 350 x 4 (2 caged)  56                 -                  -                  -                  -  
8 Vehicle Replacement - Ford Transit 290, 300 & Courier                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
9 Vehicle Replacement - Ford Ranger 2.5                   -                  -                  -                  -                  -  

10 Changing Place                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
11 PE21 Boston Town Deal-Accelerated Funding                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
12 PSPS Joining Costs & ICT                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  
13 Mobile Phone refresh 30                 -                  -                  -                  -  
14 Members device refresh 41                 -                  -                  -                  -  
15 Laptop refresh 25                 -                  -                  -                  -  
16 Firewall and Proxy Refresh 55                 -                  -                  -                  -  
  Non Towns Fund Total 1,006 824 730 730 730 

17 Towns Fund - Leisure 5,442 1,048                 -                  -                  -  
1 Town Centre Heritage Scheme                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -  

18 Towns Fund - Mayflower 8,467 734                 -                  -                  -  
2 Towns Fund - St Botolphs Library                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  

19 Towns Fund - Centre for Food & Fresh Produce Logistics 702                 -                  -                  -                  -  
3 Towns Fund - Blenkin Memorial Hall                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -  

20 Towns Fund - Healing the High St (incl Shodfriars) 2,334 1,140 106                 -                  -  
4 Towns Fund - Boston Station 1,926 33                 -                  -                  -  
  Non Towns Fund Total 18,870 2,955 106 0 0 

  Totals 19,876 3,779 836 730 730 

P
age 69



Page 22 of 28 

 

  Capital Financing £’000 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

1 Capital Grants -15,556 -2,808 -736 -630 -630 

2 Capital Reserve -4,251 -877 0 -100 -100 

3 IT Reserve -20 -94 -100 0 0 

4 RR Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 

5 Housing Reserve -49 0 0 0 0 

  Totals -19,876 -3,779 -836 -730 -730 

 
 

8.2 The Capital Strategy, Asset Management Strategy and Economic Action Plan identify and will generate potential future capital investment requirements. 
Specific schemes and values will only be included in the recommended programme when the need and likely costs have been further established in 
detailed business cases, and the Council has ensured that it has sufficient capital and revenue resources to implement such schemes. Potential capital 
schemes that could be included in future Capital programmes are summarised in table 12 above.  
 

8.3 The Council has limited capital resources and must look to new ways of financing its capital expenditure. It must also seek to reduce the running costs of 
its assets and maximise capital receipts.  

 
8.4 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement pulls together the decisions of capital investment and our cash flow and revenue budgets. 

 
Table 17 – Treasury Assumptions  
 

Treasury Assumptions 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Average Investment Balances £30.8m £21.0m £18.4m £18.3m £18.2m 

Investment return assumptions – on 
non cash balances 

3.90% 2.80% 2.10% 2.00% 2.30% 

Investment assumptions – property 
fund return (revenue return only) 

3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 

External Borrowing £16.5m £16.5m £16.5m £16.5m £16.5m 

Average Borrowing Rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 

  

8.5 These assumptions include: 
 

The Council’s available cash balances and investment returns will be influenced by the future development of the Council’s Asset Management 
Plan and all decisions made regarding the use of the Council’s Reserves for capital and revenue purposes. 

P
age 70



Page 23 of 28 

 

9.  CONSULTATION 
 

 
9.1 Under the Gunning Principles, the following points are the golden rules of consultation: 

• Proposals being consulted upon must be at a formative stage; 

• Proposals must contain enough information for the respondent to provide intelligent consideration; 

• Must give adequate time for a response; 

• Responses must be conscientiously taken into account. 
 
9.2 Using these principles, the budget consultation process for the 2023/24 budget comprised a number of elements. It was published on the 

Council’s website for consultation by all stakeholders, including the local business community. 
 
9.3 In addition to this the Council consulted through a number of Member forums including Cabinet and Scrutiny; and on the governance aspects 

of its preparation through the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
9.4 Following the budget consultation process, comments received through the Member forums, preceptors and the public exercise were taken 

into account in preparing and recommending the proposed budget for Cabinet review and formal Council approval on 22rd February and 
6th March 2023 respectively. 

 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 71



Page 24 of 28 

 

10. SAVINGS TARGETS 
 

10.1 The projected budgets recognise an increasingly challenging and uncertain position through the five year period of our financial strategy. A 
key factor is that the Local Government Finance Act 2012 and future finance reviews demand a significant transformation in the way public 
services are both paid for and provided, with an emphasis on business and housing growth to both improve economic development and 
maximise funding to the Council to help offset ongoing reductions in overall resources.  

 
10.2 Based upon current budget assumptions the value of efficiency savings required to set a balanced budget for the next five years are as 

follows: 
 

 
Table 14 – Savings Targets  
 

 2023/24* 
£000 

2024/25* 
£000 

2025/26* 
£000 

2026/27* 
£000 

2027/28* 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual 866 278 244 155 47 

 
10.3 The ongoing delivery of a significant level of savings is recognised as a key challenge to the Council that will require both political and 

cultural direction to ensure it is met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 72



Page 25 of 28 

 

11. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS’ PARTNERSHIP PLANS  

  

11.1 As we think of 2023/24 there is great uncertainty with the central funding which could be allocated to Boston. This is driven by several 
financial matters which remain unresolved such as the implications of the Fairer Funding Review, Business Rates baseline reset and a 
review of the Business Rates retention scheme. It should therefore be noted the Councils assumptions on future budget gaps whilst prudent 
could well be understated. 
 

11.2 The Council is taking a positive response to this uncertainty by seeking to influence those matters raised above through both engagement 
and lobbying to ensure a fair deal is delivered for rural communities. 

 
11.3 As we look forward into 2022/23 Cabinet will be promoting projects which aim to drive commercial opportunities, place the customer at the 

centre of everything we do and achieve as much as is possible through greater collaboration through the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership. Some of these key projects to be developed during 2022/23 include; 

 

• Realising efficiencies working together with East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District Council through the South and 

East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

• Investment in infrastructure and facilities through the Towns Fund 

• A Council service modernisation programme through investment with PSPS and also in ICT 

• Investment in the Waste service 

• Building the case for investment in infrastructure 

• Empowering communities in the way services are provided 

• Commercialisation of services 

• Addressing Deprivation in the area 

• Tackling Climate Change through the Green Homes Initiative 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



Page 26 of 28 

 

12. RISK AND SENSITIVITY 
 
 
12.1 The following table shows the key risks and how we intend to treat them through our risk management practices 
 
12.2 Table 15 – Key Risks  

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating Action 

Fairer Funding and Business Rate 
reset/changes 

High High To lobby as required 

Increased Interest Rates High High Market advice and forecasting for continuation 

Growth plans may require borrowing at 
some point in the future 

High High 
Continue to closely monitor and prioritise the Council's Capital 
Financing Requirement.  

Increased demand for Homelessness 
Support Services – relating to 
Homelessness Reduction Act 

High High 
Monitor service demand and impact on costs. Optimise use of grant 
funding and closely monitor impact. 

Lack of clarity for funding levels beyond 
22/23 and spending review 

High Medium 
Prudent budget set to provide best estimate. Transitional 
arrangements have been applied in similar previous changes 
imposed on funding arrangements. 

Fluctuation in business rates High High Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

Fair Funding Review could take into 
account actual levels of commercial 

Medium Medium Prudent budget set to provide best estimate.  

Pension fund deficit Medium Medium Close  links with LCC pension fund 

       

Additional bad debts as a result of 
economic circumstances 

Medium Medium 
The Council has pro-active debt management and pre-pay fee 
policies. 

P
age 74



Page 27 of 28 

 

Increased maintenance costs of ageing 
physical assets 

Medium Medium 
Asset management plan.  Pro-active rather than reactive 
maintenance programme 

Inflation rises by more than budgeted 
projections 

Medium Medium Budget assumptions kept up to date with most recent projections. 

Court Income High Low 
Court income projections are in line with budget. The budget has not 
been increased due to concerns over collectability of this income. A 
year-end review will be undertaken to inform future year’s budgets. 

PSPS may be unable to deliver an 
effective service within the agreed 
contract price. 

Low Medium 
Reviewing Service Level Agreements, activity levels and service 
priorities, develop a suitable Transformation Programme 

Fluctuation in business rates High High Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

Fee Income volatility High High Early monitoring of deviations 

Contract Cost volatility High High To seek to pre-purchase were necessary 

Lack of funding to partners causing 
displacement of service demand 

High High Engagement and realism 

Inadequate capital resources to finance 
future desired plans 

High High Proportionate spending and sale of surplus assets 

Central Government policy changes High High Engagement in consultation and policy creation 

Reductions in NHB impacting on future 
plans 

High High Lobbying and service transformation 

VAT – partial exemption High High Close forecasting VAT partial exemption position 

Failure to deliver the required 
transformation programme 

Medium High Effective programme and project management 

P
age 75



Page 28 of 28 

 

Reduction in Investment Values Medium Medium Regular Monitoring, allocation of specific Reserve 

Central Government policy changes High High Engagement in consultation and policy creation 

A poor settlement for rural councils Medium Medium Lobbying as a special interest group     

Increased demand for services in general Medium Medium A robust performance management framework 

 
  
13. OPTIONS 
 
13.1 There are no alternative budget options presented, however if Council does not accept the proposed budget then any changes to income 

or expenditure which will produce a revised balanced budget must be presented and approved at the Council meeting. 
 
14. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 
 
 
15. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15.1 Recommendation – That Executive Board recommends to Council to approve the budget setting report 2023/24 and associated financial 

strategies 2023/24 to 2027/28 which includes the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy. 

P
age 76



 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 

 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER (PFH) 

    

26 MAY 2022 
 

1. Cultural Strategy  
2. Guildhall Recovery 
 

Lydia Rusling  
 Phil Perry  

  

  
Cllr Richard Austin 

    

14 JULY 2022 1. UK Shared Prosperity Fund  
2. Update on Recommendations from Previous Migrant Task & Finish  

Michelle Sacks 
Andy Fisher 

  

    

6 OCT 2022  
1. Housing Benefits Update 
2. Council Tax Support Scheme Consultation 
3. South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy 

Sharron Hammond  
“ 

Peter Hunn 

 
 

    

1 DEC 2022 1. Economic Development Support  
2. Discretionary Rate Relief And Local Discounts Policies 
3. corporate Enforcement Policy  
4. Boston Leisure Centre  
5. Health & Wellbeing Strategy  

Michelle Sacks  
Sharron Hammond 

Christian Allen  
Gareth Dawkins 

Emily Spicer 

Cllr Nigel Welton 
 

Cllr Paul Skinner 
 

Cllr Martin Griggs 
    

2 FEB 2023 1. DRAFT – SELCP Asset Management Strategy 2023-2028 
2. Policy Alignment  
3. National Portfolio Organisation 
4. Christmas Lights  

Andy Fisher 
Corey Gooch 
Lydia Rusling 

Chairman 

 

    

16 MAR 2023    
    

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
- 

 

 
 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 First Draft SELCP Asset Management Strategy 2023-2028
	Appendix 1 - SELCP Asset Management Strategy

	2 Partnership Policy Alignment
	3 National Portfolio Organisation
	ACE Feedback
	S&ELCP NPO Presentation

	4 Budget  Overview 2023/24 and Draft Budget
	Appendix A - Cabinet Budget Setting Report 2023.24 BBC

	6 WORK PROGRAMME

